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Located in an industrial area on the eastern edge of Henderson, Kentucky
(population 22,976), the Henderson L. & N. Depot is a single-story, brick
structure measuring approximately 120' x 36' and highlighted by classical
details. The most notable features are the projecting square tower and the
elaborately detailed entrance. This entrance embodies a stone, round arch
opening resting on pairs of squat, red marble columns with foliated stone
capitals. A simple stone entablature forms the impost of the massive arch
which is set in a "traceried" stone wall. Recessed panels containing a flower
accent the intrados. A single-story porch supported by iron posts and brackets
shelters the entrance. Stomne buttress-like elements at the sides of the
entrance form the base of the tower which rises above the vestibule. Brick
pilaster strips capped by foliated, stone capitals reinforce the corners of

the tower, the sides of which are pierced by slender apertures. A stone band
encircles the tower just below the point where stone piers rise to support the
slate roof. The linear section of the structure  is sheltered by a low-pitched,
overhanging roof supported by wooden brackets. All of the original stained
glass windows have been removed.

The vestibule gives access to the general waiting room on the north and the
smaller waiting room on the south formerly reserved for blacks. At the

extreme northern end is the ladies waiting room with its projecting, semi-
circular bay. The interior is richly embellished with classical moldings and
trim consisting of pilaster strips capped by Corinthian capitals and a complete
entablature encircling the waiting room. The cornice displays dentils while
the frieze reveals an anthemion motif. Doors are set in round arch openings
with egg-and-dart moldings. The light fixture is suspended from a plaster
relief medallion with anthemion designs. Much of the mosiac tile floor remains
intact. »

A small brick storage shed is located just south of the depot. The nomination of
approximately two acres is designed to include the brick storage shed located south
of the depot and sufficient space to ensure site integrity.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The design of the 1901 L. & N. Depot which has served Henderson, Kentucky for
three~quarters of a century distinguishes this structure from the simpler frame
railroad stations that are typical of most small towns. While adhering to a basic
depot plan, the design of the Henderson structure builds upon the traditional form

to create an edifice notable because of the overall effect produced by the combination
of high quality building materials and attention to elaborate detail. The depot

was obviously planned to serve as a visual landmark for the community as well as

a prominent railroad center for this region of the state.

Henderson County, Kentucky, was formed in 1798 out of part of Christian County.

It was the thirty-eighth county organized in the state by the Kentucky General
Assembly. Named in honor of Colonel Richard Henderson, one of the original pioneer
founders of Kentucky, the county initially encompassed all of the territory out of
which the present Hopkins County was formed in 1806, Union County in 1811, and
Webster County in 1860. Located in the southwestern part of the state ,

‘Henderson . . County is a rich agricultural area especially along the Ohio

River which forms its northern boundary for seventy miles and the Green River which
waters the county for an additional forty miles. Henderson is one of the largest
corn and tobacco producing counties in the state.

The county seat of Henderson was incorporated in 1810 and is located on the Ohio
River, 196 miles below Louisville and approximately eleven and one-half miles
below Evansville, Indiana, as river traffic flows. It is also approximately 173
miles above Caifo, Tllinois, and about 170 miles from Frankfort. Henderson was an
important railroad center and served as a major terminal point for the railroads
serving its area.

Built in 1901, the depot served as a landmark for a great many departing servicemen
who left for duty or returned home via this station. During World War II as many

as twenty-eight passenger trains passed through Henderson daily. Among the American
presidential candidates who made whistle tour stops there during their campaigns,
were Warren G. Harding in 1920, Harry S. Truman and Thomas E. Dewey in 1948, and
Dwight D. Eisenhower in 1952. The last passenger train came through Henderson

in 1971 and on August 30, 1978, the offices were vacated by the switch and signal
operators.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A rectangular area bounded on the east by the railroad track, the west by Clark Street,
and extending 50' from the north and south foundation lines of the depot.
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Although the names of the actual builders of the depot are not known, it has

been established that the chief engineer of the railroad at that time approved

all plans which were used. Therefore, Richard Montfort (1854-1934), the first
chief engineer of the L.,& N,Railroad Company was at least partially responsible
for its design. Montfort had been born and educated in Ireland and after coming

to the United States, he was employed by the Louisville Bridge and Iron Company.

In 1880 he entered the service of the L.& N, as bridge engineer, becoming engineer
in 1883. 1In 1887 Montfort was appointed the first chief engineer in the history
of the company. In 1905 he sought relief from the duties of chief engineer and was
made consulting engineer. He continued in that capacity until 1930.

Although passenger service no longer exists at Henderson, and the depot has not

been used since 1978, there are still a great many people in this area who

recognize the significance of the station. The structure remains an historical

and architeciural landmark to the railroad industry, as well as a rememberance

of passenger service, now a passing phase of the first of the colossal transportation
glants in the history of this nation.
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